PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED _______, 2025

RATING: S&P: "___" (See "RATING" herein.)

In the opinion of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond Counsel to the Participants, under existing statutes and court decisions and assuming continuing compliance with certain tax covenants described herein, (i) interest on the Note Participations is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and (ii) interest on the Note Participations is not treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax under the Code, however, interest on the Note Participations, is included in the "adjusted financial statement income" of certain corporations that are subject to the alternative minimum tax under Section 55 of the Code. In addition, in the opinion of Bond Counsel to the Participants, under existing statutes, interest on the Note Participations is exempt from State of California personal income. See "TAX MATTERS" herein.

\$[Preliminary Principal Amount]* SAN DIEGO COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICTS TAX AND REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTE PROGRAM NOTE PARTICIPATIONS, SERIES 2025A

Evidencing and Representing Proportionate and Undivided Interests of the Owners Thereof in 2025-26 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes of Certain School Districts within San Diego County

___% Priced to Yield ___%; CUSIP No.†: 797381___

Dated: Date of Delivery

Maturity Date: _____, 2020

The Note Participations (as hereinafter defined) will be delivered as fully registered certificates, without coupons, and when delivered will be registered in the name of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), or its nominee. DTC will act as securities depository for the Note Participations. Individual purchases of beneficial interests in the Note Participations will be made in book-entry form only and in the principal amount of \$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Purchasers of such beneficial interests will not receive physical delivery of the Note Participations. Principal of and interest on the Notes (as herein defined) represented by the Note Participations will be payable on the maturity date set forth above by the Trustee to DTC. DTC will in turn remit such principal and interest to the DTC Participants (as hereinafter defined), who will in turn remit such principal and interest to the Beneficial Owners (as hereinafter defined) of the Note Participations. See "DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS – Book-Entry System" herein.

The Note Participations will not be subject to prepayment prior to maturity.

The Note Participations are being issued pursuant to the terms of a Trust Agreement, dated as of [As of Date] (the "Trust Agreement"), by and among the County of San Diego (the "County"), the Participants identified herein under "THE PARTICIPANTS" (the "Participants") and [UMB Bank n.a.] (the "Trustee"). The Note Participations mature on the maturity date set forth above and evidence and represent a proportionate and undivided interest in the 2025-26 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (individually, a "Note" and collectively, the "Notes") issued by the County on behalf of all Participants and debt service payments on the Notes to be made by the Participants.

The Notes are being issued to provide operating cash for the Participants' working capital expenditures and the investment and reinvestment of funds for the Participants prior to the receipt of anticipated tax payments and other revenues, identified in the Trust Agreement, provided for or attributable to Fiscal Year 2025-26. Each Participant has pledged certain Unrestricted Revenues as described herein for the payment of the principal of and interest on its respective Note, provided that no Participant has any obligation to pay the principal of or interest on the Note of any other Participant. The Notes are general obligations of the respective Participants and, to the extent the Notes are not paid from revenues pledged for the payment of the Notes, the Notes shall be paid with interest thereon from any other moneys of the Participants lawfully available therefor.

Payments by a Participant of the principal of and interest on its Note shall fully discharge the obligation of such Participant to the Owners of the Note Participations, notwithstanding nonpayment by one or more other Participants. The obligation of each Participant is a several and not a joint obligation and is strictly limited to such Participant's repayment obligation under its applicable Note Resolution and Note.

THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF EACH PARTICIPANT PAYABLE SOLELY FROM CERTAIN FUNDS PLEDGED UNDER THE TRUST AGREEMENT. THE OBLIGATION OF EACH PARTICIPANT TO PAY PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A DEBT OF THE PARTICIPANT, THE COUNTY OR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, IN CONTRAVENTION OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY DEBT LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION.

THIS COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR QUICK REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS NOT A SUMMARY OF THIS ISSUE. INVESTORS MUST READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO OBTAIN INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO THE MAKING OF AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION.

Bids for the purchase of the Note Participations will be received by the County, on behalf of the Participants, at [Bid Time] a.m. Pacific Time on [Bid Date], as provided in the Notice Inviting Bids dated [NIB Date], unless postponed as set forth in the Notice Inviting Bids. See "SALE OF THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS" herein.

The Note Participations will be offered in book-entry form when, and if executed and delivered, subject to approval as to their legality by Hawkins
Delafield & Wood LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel to the Participants, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed
upon for the County by Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Los Angeles, California, Disclosure Counsel to the County. It is anticipated that the Note
Participations, in book-entry form, will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC on or about, 2025.

Dated: ______, 2025.

^{*} Preliminary, subject to change.

[†] Copyright, 2025, American Bankers Association.

PARTICIPANTS

San Diego Unified School District San Dieguito Union High School District

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Terra Lawson-Remer, Chair
Paloma Aguirre, Chair Pro Tem
Monica Montgomery Steppe, Vice Chair
Joel Anderson
Jim Desmond
Third District
First District
Fourth District
Second District
Fifth District

COUNTY OFFICIALS

Ebony N. Shelton, *Chief Administrative Officer*Myrna Zambrano, *Acting Treasurer – Tax Collector*Joan Bracci, *Chief Financial Officer*David J. Smith, *County Counsel*

SPECIAL SERVICES

Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP Los Angeles, California

Public Finance Consultant to School District Participants
Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority
Sacramento, California

Trustee
[UMB Bank n.a.]
Costa Mesa, California

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation other than those contained in this Official Statement in connection with the offers made hereby and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Participants. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell the Note Participations in any state or other jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer in such state or jurisdiction.

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Note Participations. Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as a representation of facts.

The information set forth herein has been provided by the Participants and other sources that are believed by the Participants to be reliable.

The information and expression of opinions herein are subject to change without notice and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create an implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Participants since the date hereof. This Official Statement is submitted with respect to the sale of the Note Participations referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose, unless authorized in writing by the County. All summaries of the Note Participations, the Notes, the Note Resolutions, the Trust Agreement, the Investment Agreement, if any (each as defined herein), and other documents, are made subject to the provisions of such documents respectively and do not purport to be complete statements of any or all of such provisions. Preparation of this Official Statement and its distribution have been duly authorized and approved by the Participants.

This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the execution and delivery of the Note Participations referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.

CUSIP is copyrighted 2025, American Bankers Association. CUSIP® is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by the CUSIP Service Bureau, managed on behalf of the American Bankers Association by Standard & Poor's. This data is not intended to create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP Services Bureau. CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an independent company not affiliated with the Participants and are included solely for the convenience of the registered owners of the applicable Note Participations. Neither the Participants nor the Underwriters are responsible for the selection or uses of these CUSIP numbers, and no representation is made as to their correctness on the applicable Note Participations or as included herein. The CUSIP number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance of the Note Participations as a result of various subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part or as a result of the procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance and other similar enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities of the Note Participations.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Pa</u>	age
INTRODUCTION	1
THE TRANSACTION	3
DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS	3
The Note Participations	
Book-Entry System	
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS	
The Notes.	
Pledged RevenuesPayment Accounts	
Expedited Procedure for Deposits into Payment Accounts	
Additional Notes	
SUMMARY OF THE NOTE RESOLUTIONS	8
Covenants of the Participants	
Events of Default	
Remedies	
SUMMARY OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT	
General Deposit of the Notes, Note Proceeds and Note Payments	
Investments	
Events of Default	
Application of Funds Upon Event of Default	
INVESTMENT OF PARTICIPANT FUNDS	14
THE PARTICIPANTS	14
LIMITATIONS ON REMEDIES	14
TAX MATTERS	
Opinion of Bond Counsel	
Certain Ongoing Federal Tax Requirements and Covenants	
Certain Collateral Federal Tax Consequences	
Original Issue Discount	
Bond Premium Information Reporting and Backup Withholding	
Miscellaneous	
LITIGATION	
RATING	
LEGAL MATTERS	
SALE OF THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS	
PUBLIC FINANCE CONSULTANT	
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE	
MISCELLANEOUS	20
APPENDIX A - INFORMATION REGARDING THE PARTICIPANTS	.A-1
APPENDIX B - 2025-26 CASH FLOW PROJECTIONS OF THE PARTICIPANTS	.B-1
APPENDIX C - SCHEDULE OF PLEDGED REVENUE DEPOSITS	
APPENDIX D - FORM OF BOND COUNSEL APPROVING OPINIONAPPENDIX E - PARTICIPANT NOTE AMOUNTS AND COVERAGE ANALYSIS	

(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

\$[Preliminary Principal Amount]* SAN DIEGO COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICTS TAX AND REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTE PROGRAM NOTE PARTICIPATIONS, SERIES 2025A

Evidencing and Representing Proportionate and Undivided Interests of the Owners Thereof in 2025-26 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes of Certain School Districts within San Diego County

INTRODUCTION

This Introduction is not a summary of this Official Statement. It is only a brief description of and is qualified by a more complete and detailed information contained in the entire Official Statement, including the cover page and appendices hereto, and the documents described herein. References to and summaries of provisions of the Constitution and laws of the State of California and any documents referred to herein do not purport to be complete and such references are qualified in their entirety by reference to the complete provisions.

This Official Statement, including the cover page, table of contents and appendices, sets forth certain information concerning the \$[Preliminary Principal Amount]* aggregate principal amount of the San Diego County School Districts Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note Program Note Participations, Series 2025A (the "Note Participations"), comprised of Note Participations maturing on June 30, 2026. The Note Participations evidence and represent proportionate and undivided interests of the owners thereof in the 2025-26 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (individually, a "Note" and collectively, the "Notes"), as identified in the Trust Agreement (as herein defined), issued by the County of San Diego (the "County") on behalf of the various school districts, as further described under the "THE PARTICIPANTS" herein (the "Participants") located in San Diego County, California, and the debt service payments on the Notes to be made by the Participants. Each Note is issued pursuant to Article 7.6, Chapter 4, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 (commencing with Section 53850) of the California Government Code (the "Government Code") and in accordance with a resolution adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the County (the "Board") on behalf of each Participant and a resolution adopted by each Participant (each a "Note Resolution").

The Note Participations are being issued pursuant to the terms of a Trust Agreement, dated as of [As of Date] (the "Trust Agreement"), by and among the County, the Participants identified herein under "THE PARTICIPANTS" (the "Participants"), and [UMB Bank n.a.] (the "Trustee"). See APPENDICES A and B for a summary description of certain information respecting each Participant.

The Note Participations will be executed and delivered in an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Notes. The Notes represented by the Note Participations are being issued to provide operating cash for the current working capital expenditures, capital expenditures and the investment and reinvestment of funds prior to the receipt of anticipated tax payments and other revenues for the respective Participants. Imbalances in the Participants' cash flows, resulting from the timing of expenditures and receipts, require that the Participants borrow funds to meet all scheduled disbursements, including current expenses, capital expenditures, and the discharge of other obligations or indebtedness of the Participants.

Each Participant has pledged, pursuant to Section 53856 of the Government Code and its respective Note Resolution for the payment of principal of and interest on its respective Note, certain Unrestricted Revenues (as hereinafter defined, the "Pledged Revenues") which are received, accrued or held by the

_

^{*} Preliminary, subject to change.

Participant and are attributable to the 2025-26 Fiscal Year, and the principal of its Note and the interest thereon shall constitute a first lien and charge thereon and shall be payable from the first moneys received by the Participant from such Pledged Revenues and, to the extent not so paid, shall be paid from any other taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts and other moneys of the Participant provided for or attributable to the 2025-26 Fiscal Year and available therefor (all as provided for in Sections 53856 and 53857 of the Government Code). The term "Unrestricted Revenues" shall mean all taxes, income, revenue (including, but not limited to, revenue from the State and federal governments), cash receipts, and other moneys, which are generally available for the payment of current expenses and other obligations of the Participant. The Owners (as defined below) shall have a first lien and charge on such Unrestricted Revenues as provided in the Trust Agreement which are received, accrued or held by the Participant and are attributable to the 2025-26 Fiscal Year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms "Unrestricted Revenues" and "Pledged Revenues" shall exclude moneys which, when received by the Participant, will be encumbered for a special purpose unless an equivalent amount of the proceeds of the related Participant's Note is set aside and used for said special purpose. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Unrestricted Revenues pledged by the Participants to the payment of the Notes represented by their respective Note Participations as Pledged Revenues shall not include any amounts pledged by the Participants to the payment of any temporary transfer of funds by the Treasurer-Tax Collector of the County (the "Treasurer-Tax Collector") pursuant to Section 6 of Article XVI of the California Constitution (the "Temporary Transfers"), which transfers are referred to as Treasurer's Loans from time to time.

Each Participant has agreed pursuant to its respective Note Resolution to cause to be deposited with the Trustee an amount, together with interest earnings thereon, equal to the principal amount of and interest due on its respective Note from Pledged Revenues received by the Participant in certain sequentially numbered Repayment Dates (as defined in the respective Note Resolutions). See "SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS" herein.

No Participant has any obligation to pay the principal of or interest on the Note of any other Participant. The Notes are general obligations of the respective Participants and, to the extent the Notes are not paid from such Pledged Revenues, the Notes shall be paid, with interest thereon, from any other moneys of the respective Participants lawfully available therefor pursuant to Section 53857 of the Government Code. The obligation of each Participant is a several and not a joint obligation and is strictly limited to such Participant's repayment obligation under its applicable Note Resolution and Note. See "SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS" herein.

The Participants may issue, upon satisfaction of certain conditions in the Participant's respective authorizing resolutions, additional notes secured by a pledge of Pledged Revenues on a parity with or subordinate to the pledge of Pledged Revenues for the Notes. See "SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS – Additional Notes" herein.

All quotations from and summaries and explanations of provisions of the laws of the State of California (the "State") and acts and proceedings of the Participants contained herein do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the official compilations thereof, and all references to the Note Participations, the Notes, the Note Resolutions and the proceedings of the Participants relating thereto, are qualified in their entirety by reference to the definitive forms of the Note Participations, the Notes and such proceedings. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Trust Agreement and, where the context indicates, the respective Note Resolution.

THE TRANSACTION

On the date of issuance of the Notes and the execution and delivery of the Note Participations (the "Closing Date") the following transactions shall occur simultaneously in accordance with the Trust Agreement: (a) the County shall deposit each respective Note, on behalf of each Participant, in trust with the Trustee, who shall hold such Notes in trust until their maturity; (b) the Trustee shall execute and deliver the related Note Participations, registered in the name of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), or its nominee, for the benefit of the beneficial owners of interests in the Note Participations described herein ("Beneficial Owners"); and (c) the proceeds of the Note Participations shall be deposited and disbursed as set forth in the Trust Agreement.

The purchase price for the Notes shall be derived solely from the proceeds received from the sale of the Note Participations, which shall be an amount equal to the principal amount of the Notes, less any underwriters' discount and original issue discount and plus any original issue premium. The Note Participations shall represent undivided, proportionate interests in the Notes and the debt service payments to be made by the Participants under the Notes. Principal and interest payments made by the Participants to the Trustee shall be remitted by wire transfer to DTC or its nominee which in turn will remit such payments to participants in DTC ("DTC Participants") for subsequent disbursement to the Beneficial Owners. See "DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS – Book-Entry System" herein. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Trustee agrees to transfer all such debt service payments as may be received from the related Participants to DTC, as Registered Owner of the Note Participations (the "Owner"), and the Trustee agrees to hold the Notes until their maturity for the benefit of the Beneficial Owners. Neither the Trustee nor the Participants shall have any further liability with respect to payments of principal of and interest on the Notes represented by the Note Participations or any fiduciary responsibility to the Owners or the Beneficial Owners except as expressly set forth in the Trust Agreement or the terms of the Note Participations. See "SUMMARY OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT" herein.

DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS

The Note Participations

The Note Participations will be executed and delivered as fully registered certificates, without coupons. The Note Participations will be dated, will mature and will have an interest component calculated at the rates per annum, all as shown on the cover page hereof. Principal with respect to the Notes will be payable on the Maturity Date (as defined in each Participant's Note). Principal and interest with respect to the Notes will be payable on their respective Maturity Dates (as defined in each Participant's Note). Principal of and interest due on the Notes represented by the Note Participations will be payable by the Trustee to DTC, which will in turn remit such principal and interest to the DTC Participants. It is the responsibility of the DTC Participants to remit such principal and interest to the Beneficial Owners. See "Book-Entry System" below. The Note Participations and the Notes evidenced thereby are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Book-Entry System

The information hereunder concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry only system has been obtained from DTC and the Participants take no responsibility for the completeness or accuracy thereof. The Participants, the Trustee and the Underwriters cannot and do not give any assurances that DTC, DTC Participants or Indirect Participants will distribute to the Beneficial Owners (a) payments of interest, principal or premium, if any, with respect to the Note Participations, (b) certificates representing ownership interest in or other confirmation or ownership interest in the Note Participations, or (c) redemption or other notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., its nominee, as the registered owner of the Note Participations,

or that they will do so on a timely basis, or that DTC, DTC Participants or DTC Indirect Participants will act in the manner described in this Official Statement. The Participants, the Trustee and the Underwriters are not responsible or liable for the failure of DTC or any DTC Participant to make any payment or give any notice to a Beneficial Owner with respect to the Note Participations or an error or delay relating thereto. The current "Rules" applicable to DTC are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the current "Procedures" of DTC to be followed in dealing with DTC Participants are on file with DTC.

- 1. DTC will act as securities depository for the Note Participations. The Note Participations will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Note Participations and will be deposited with DTC.
- DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has a S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC ("S&P") rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. Information on this website is not incorporated herein.
- 3. Purchases of the Note Participations under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Note Participations on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Note Participation ("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Note Participations are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Note Participations, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Note Participations is discontinued.
- 4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Note Participations deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of the Note Participations with DTC

and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Note Participations; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Note Participations are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

- 5. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of the Note Participations may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Note Participations, such as redemptions, defaults, and proposed amendments to the financing documents.
- 6. Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Note Participations within an issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.
- 7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Note Participations unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Trustee as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Note Participations are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).
- 8. Redemption proceeds on the Note Participations will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Participants or the Trustee, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Participants or the Trustee, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Participants or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.
- 9. DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Note Participations at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Participants or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Note Participation certificates are required to be printed and delivered.
- 11. The Participants may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, certificated Note Participations will be printed and delivered to DTC.
- 12. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that the Participants believes to be reliable, but the Participants take no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

NEITHER THE PARTICIPANTS, THE COUNTY, THE TRUSTEE NOR THE UNDERWRITERS WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATIONS TO DTC, THE DIRECT PARTICIPANTS, THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OF DTC OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS WITH RESPECT TO (1) THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OF DTC; (2) THE PAYMENT BY DTC OR ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OF DTC OF ANY AMOUNT DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER IN RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF OR INTEREST ON NOTE PARTICIPANTS OF DTC OF ANY NOTICE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER THAT IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED TO BE GIVEN TO OWNERS UNDER THE TERMS OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT; OR (4) ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS OWNER OF THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS.

SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS

The Notes

The Note Participations evidence and represent proportionate and undivided interests in the Notes and in debt service payments attributable to the Note Participations to be made thereon by the respective Participants. The Notes are general obligations of the respective Participants and, to the extent not paid as identified in the Trust Agreement from the pledged moneys herein described, shall be paid from any other moneys of the Participants lawfully available therefor. However, except for the Pledged Revenues described herein, the Participants are not prohibited from pledging, encumbering and utilizing other moneys for other purposes and there can be no assurance that such other moneys will be available for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Notes represented by the Note Participations and the Notes evidenced thereby. No Participant has any obligation to pay the principal of or interest on the Note of any other Participant.

The Notes represented by the Note Participations are secured by the Pledged Revenues as identified in the Trust Agreement and as described herein of the Participants. See APPENDIX A – "INFORMATION REGARDING THE PARTICIPANTS" for more information on the Participants.

Pledged Revenues

As security for the Notes, the Participants have each pledged certain Unrestricted Revenues (as hereinafter defined, the "Pledged Revenues") which are received, accrued or held by the Participant and are attributable to the 2025-26 Fiscal Year, and the principal of the Notes and the interest thereon shall constitute a first lien and charge thereon and shall be payable from the first moneys received by the Participant from such Pledged Revenues, and, to the extent not so paid, shall be paid from any other taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts and other moneys of the Participant provided for or attributable to the 2025-26 Fiscal Year and available therefor (all as provided for in Sections 53856 and 53857 of the Government Code). The term "Unrestricted Revenues" shall mean all taxes, income, revenue (including, but not limited to, revenue from the state and federal governments), cash receipts, and other moneys, which are generally available for the payment of current expenses and other obligations of the Participant. The Owners shall have a first lien and charge on such Unrestricted Revenues as provided in the Trust Agreement which are received, accrued or held by the Participant and are attributable to the 2025-26 Fiscal Year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms "Unrestricted Revenues" and "Pledged Revenues" shall exclude moneys which, when received by a Participant, will be encumbered for a special purpose unless an equivalent amount of the proceeds of its Note is set aside and used for said special purpose. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Unrestricted Revenues pledged by the Participants to the payment of the Notes represented by the

Note Participations as Pledged Revenues shall not include any amounts pledged by the Participants to the payment of any Treasurer Temporary Transfers.

To effect the pledge referred to in the preceding paragraph, each Participant has agreed pursuant to its respective Note Resolution to the establishment and maintenance by the Trustee of a Payment Account as a special fund of such Participant (each, a "Payment Account") within the Note Participation Payment Fund under the Trust Agreement. Each Participant has agreed to cause to be deposited directly in its Payment Account on the Repayment Dates (as defined in such Participant's Note Resolution) Pledged Revenues until the amount on deposit in such account is equal on the respective Repayment Dates to the percentages of the principal of the Note due at maturity and interest due on the Note on the Repayment Dates. Any such deposit may take into consideration anticipated investment earnings on amounts invested in a Permitted Investment, as defined in the Trust Agreement, with a fixed rate of return through the Maturity Date. In the event that on each such Repayment Date, such Participant has not received an amount sufficient to deposit into its Payment Account the full amount of Pledged Revenues, then the amount of any deficiency will be satisfied and made up from any other moneys of such Participant lawfully available for the payment of the principal of its Note and the interest thereon, as and when such other moneys are received or are otherwise legally available. The schedule of Pledged Revenue deposits, including the percentage of aggregate principal and interest to be set aside on the applicable Repayment Dates, is set forth in APPENDIX C - "SCHEDULE OF PLEDGED REVENUE DEPOSITS" attached hereto.

On each Repayment Date, the moneys in the respective Payment Accounts shall be transferred by the Trustee, to the extent necessary, to pay the interest on, or principal of and interest on, the Notes, as applicable. In the event that moneys in any Payment Account are insufficient to pay the interest on, or the principal of and interest on, the related Note in full on the applicable Repayment Date, moneys in such Payment Account shall be applied first to pay interest on the related Note and second to pay principal of the related Note. See APPENDIX E – "PARTICIPANT NOTE AMOUNTS AND COVERAGE ANALYSIS" attached hereto.

Payment Accounts

In accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement, all principal and interest payments on the Notes received by the Trustee shall be held in trust by the Trustee under the terms of the Trust Agreement and shall be deposited by it, as and when received, in the appropriate Payment Account within the Note Participation Payment Fund established thereunder, and all money in such fund shall be held in trust by the Trustee for the benefit of the Participant submitting such money until deposited for the payment of principal and interest in connection with the Note Participations, whereupon such money shall be held in trust in such accounts by the Trustee for the benefit and security of the Owners as set forth in the Trust Agreement. Pursuant to each Note Resolution, each Participant is required to deposit amounts with the Trustee on the dates identified as such Participant's Repayment Dates until the amount on deposit in such Participant's Payment Account, taking into consideration anticipated investment earnings thereon to be received by the Maturity Date, is equal on the respective Repayment Dates identified in the Pricing Confirmation to the percentages of the interest, or the principal and interest, as applicable, due on such Participant's Note on each Repayment Date. Pursuant to each Participant's Note Resolution, the maximum number of Repayment Dates for each Participant shall be six. If any Participant fails to make the required deposits, the Trustee shall as soon as practical (but in any event within five Business Days) notify such Participant of such failure. If the Trustee receives Payment Account deposits from a Participant in excess of the amounts required to pay the principal of and interest due on such Participant's Note on the Principal Payment Date, such excess amounts shall remain in the appropriate Participant's Payment Account in the Note Participation Payment Fund and shall be transferred to such Participant following payment of the amount of Note Participations evidencing and representing such Participant's Note. The Participants, to the extent they have any interest in such fund, pledge, transfer, assign and grant a lien on and a

security interest in the Note Participation Payment Fund and their respective Payment Account therein to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners. Moneys in any Participant's Payment Account will neither be available nor used in any manner (directly or indirectly) to make up any deficiency in the Payment Account of another Participant or for payment of principal of and interest on any other Participant's Note.

Expedited Procedure for Deposits into Payment Accounts

Each Participant has covenanted to cause its funds, to the extent available, to be transferred by the Treasurer-Tax Collector from its general fund at the Treasurer-Tax Collector's office, or from the Participant's Proceeds Subaccount (as hereinafter defined) held by the Trustee, for deposit and credit to such Participant's Payment Account under the Trust Agreement, in an amount equal to the principal and interest due on the Participant's Note on each Repayment Date. Unless otherwise instructed by the Participant, the Trustee shall first cause the respective Participant's funds, to the extent available, to be transferred from the Participants' general fund at the Treasurer-Tax Collector's office to the Participant's Payment Account. The Trustee shall cause the balance, if any, required to be transferred on each Repayment Date to be deposited into each Participant's respective Proceeds Subaccount.

Additional Notes

Each Participant may at any time during the 2025-26 Fiscal Year issue or provide for the issuance of an additional note secured by a pledge of Pledged Revenues on a parity with the pledge of Pledged Revenues for the Notes (the "Parity Note"); provided that (i) such Participant shall have received confirmation from each rating agency rating its outstanding Note or Note Participations related to the Note, that the issuance of such Parity Note (or related series of note participation if sold into a pool) will not cause a reduction or withdrawal of such rating agency's rating on the outstanding Note or Note Participations related to the Note, (ii) the maturity date of any such Parity Note shall be later than the Participant's outstanding Note and (iii) such Participant shall have received the written consent of the credit provider, if any, to the issuance of the Parity Note.

Each Participant may also issue, upon satisfaction of certain conditions in the Participant's respective authorizing resolution, additional notes secured by a pledge of Pledged Revenues subordinate to the pledge of Pledged Revenues for the Notes.

SUMMARY OF THE NOTE RESOLUTIONS

Covenants of the Participants

In its respective Note Resolution, each Participant has approved and authorized, on its behalf, the execution of the Trust Agreement and its respective Note and has represented or covenanted, among other things, the following:

(A) The Participant has (or will have prior to the issuance of its Note) duly, regularly and properly adopted a preliminary budget for Fiscal Year 2025-26 setting forth expected revenues and expenditures and has complied with all statutory and regulatory requirements with respect to the adoption of such budget. The Participant will (i) duly, regularly and properly prepare and adopt its final budget for the Repayment Fiscal Year, (ii) provide to the public finance consultant to the Participants and the Underwriters (or owner of the Note Participations in the event of a private placement), promptly upon adoption, copies of such final budget and of any subsequent revisions, modifications or amendments thereto and (iii) comply with all applicable law pertaining to its budget.

- (B) The sum of the principal amount of the Participant's Note and any outstanding note payable from Unrestricted Revenues that are provided for or attributable to the Repayment Fiscal Year, plus the interest payable thereon, on the date of its issuance, will not exceed eighty-five percent (85%) of the estimated amounts of such Participant's uncollected taxes, income, revenue (including, but not limited to, revenue from the State and federal governments), cash receipts, and other moneys to be received or accrued by such Participant for the general fund of such Participant and provided for or attributable to Fiscal Year 2025-26, all of which will be legally available to pay principal of and interest on such outstanding note and the Note (exclusive of any moneys required to be used to repay a treasurer's loan, if any).
- (C) The County has experienced an *ad valorem* property tax collection rate of not less than eighty-five percent (85%) of the average aggregate amount of *ad valorem* property taxes levied within the Participant's boundaries in each of the last five fiscal years for which information is available, and such Participant, as of the date of adoption of its Note Resolution and on the date of issuance of its Note, reasonably expects the County to collect at least eighty-five percent (85%) of such amount for Fiscal Year 2025-26.
- (D) The Participant is not currently in default, on any debt obligation and, to the best knowledge of such Participant, has never defaulted on any debt obligation.
- (E) The Participant and its appropriate officials have duly taken, or will take, all proceedings necessary to be taken by them, if any, for the levy, receipt, collection and enforcement of the Pledged Revenues in accordance with law for carrying out the provisions of its Note Resolution and its Note.
- (F) Except for a Parity Note, if any, the Participant shall not incur any indebtedness secured by a pledge of its Unrestricted Revenues unless such pledge is subordinate in all respects to the pledge of Unrestricted Revenues under its Note Resolution.
 - (G) The Participant will maintain a positive general fund balance in Fiscal Year 2025-26.
- (H) Each of the Participants has funded its Reserve for Economic Uncertainties for Fiscal Year 2024-25 in at least the minimum amount recommended, and will budget to fund its Reserve for Economic Uncertainties for Fiscal Year 2025-26 in at least the minimum amount recommended by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction.

Events of Default

Pursuant to each respective Participant's Note Resolution, if any of the following events occurs, it is defined as and declared to be and to constitute an "Event of Default" under such Note Resolution:

- (A) Failure by the Participant to make or cause to be made the deposits to its Payment Account or any other payment required to be paid under its Note Resolution on or before the date on which such deposit or other payment is due and payable;
- (B) Failure by the Participant to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under its Note Resolution, for a period of 15 days after written notice, specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, is given to the Participant by the Trustee, unless the Trustee shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to its expiration;
- (C) Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of the Participant contained in its Note Resolution or the Purchase Contract (including its Pricing Confirmation), or in any instrument

furnished in compliance with or in reference to its Note Resolution or the Purchase Contract or in connection with its Note, is false or misleading in any material respect;

- (D) A petition is filed against the Participant under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect and is not dismissed within 30 days after such filing, but the Trustee shall have the right to intervene in the proceedings prior to the expiration of such 30 days to protect its and the Owners' interests;
- (E) The Participant files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy or seeking relief under any provision of any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect, or consents to the filing of any petition against it under such law;
- (F) The Participant admits insolvency or bankruptcy or is generally not paying its debts as such debts become due, or becomes insolvent or bankrupt or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a custodian (including without limitation a receiver, liquidator or trustee) of the Participant or any of its property is appointed by court order or takes possession thereof and such order remains in effect or such possession continues for more than 30 days, but the Trustee shall have the right to intervene in the proceedings prior to the expiration of such 30 days to protect its and the Owners' interests; and
- (G) An "Event of Default" under the terms of the resolution of the County providing for the issuance of the Notes.

Remedies

Whenever any Event of Default under any Note Resolution shall have happened and be continuing, the Trustee shall, in addition to any other remedies provided under the applicable Note Resolution or by law or under the Trust Agreement, have the right, at its option without any further demand or notice, to take one or any combination of the following remedial steps:

- (1) Without declaring the affected Note to be immediately due and payable, require the related Participant to pay to the Trustee, for deposit into the Payment Account of the Participant in the Note Participation Payment Fund under the related Trust Agreement, an amount equal to the principal of its Note and interest thereon to maturity, plus all other amounts due under the related Note Resolution, and upon notice to the Participant the same shall become immediately due and payable by the Participant without further notice or demand; and
- (2) Take whatever other action at law or in equity (except for acceleration of payment on the Note) which may appear necessary or desirable to collect the amounts then due and thereafter to become due under the related Note Resolution or to enforce any other of its rights under the related Note Resolution.

SUMMARY OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT

General

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Trustee is appointed to act as trustee with respect to the Note Participations, with the duty to hold the Notes in trust until maturity for the benefit of the Owners of the Note Participations. The payments on the Notes shall be used for the punctual payment of the interest and principal evidenced and represented by the related Note Participations, and the Notes or payments thereon shall not be used for any other purpose while any of the related Note Participations remain Outstanding.

Deposit of the Notes, Note Proceeds and Note Payments

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Notes, as evidenced and represented by the Note Participations, shall be irrevocably deposited with and pledged and transferred to the Trustee, which is the registered owner of each Note for the benefit of the Owners of the Note Participations and the payments on the Notes shall be used for the punctual payment of the interest and principal evidenced and represented by the Note Participations, and the Notes shall not be used for any other purpose while the respective Note Participations remain Outstanding. This deposit, transfer and pledge shall constitute a first and exclusive lien on the principal and interest payments of the Notes for the foregoing purpose in accordance with the terms of the Trust Agreement.

The Trustee shall execute and deliver the Note Participations evidencing and representing the aggregate principal amount of the Notes. The obligation of each Participant to Owners is a several and not a joint obligation and is strictly limited to the Participant's repayment obligation under its Resolution and its Note. The net proceeds from the sale of the Note Participations will be deposited with the Trustee for the payment of certain costs of issuance and for deposit into the Proceeds Fund and credited to subaccounts of that Fund (the "Proceeds Subaccounts"), one of which shall be established for each of the Participants under the Trust Agreement. All money in the Proceeds Fund shall be held by the Trustee in trust. Moneys in the Proceeds Subaccount of each Participant shall be disbursed to that Participant from time to time, as soon as practical, pursuant to a requisition of the Participant, for any purpose for which the Participant is authorized to expend moneys.

All principal and interest payments on the Notes shall be paid directly by the Participants to the Trustee. All principal and interest payments on the Notes received by the Trustee shall be held in trust by the Trustee under the terms of the Trust Agreement and shall be deposited by it, as and when received, in the appropriate Payment Account within the Note Participation Payment Fund established under the Trust Agreement, which fund the Trustee shall maintain so long as any Note Participations are Outstanding, and all money in such fund shall be held in trust by the Trustee for the benefit of the Participant submitting such money until deposited in the Interest Fund and Principal Fund established under the Trust Agreement in accordance with the Trust Agreement, whereupon such money shall be held in trust in such funds by the Trustee for the benefit and security of the Owners to the extent provided in the Trust Agreement. Pursuant to each Participant's Note Resolution, each Participant is required to deposit amounts with the Trustee on the dates identified as such Participant's Repayment Dates. Any such deposit may take into consideration anticipated investment earnings on amounts deposited or in an investment agreement through the Maturity Date. If any Participant fails to make the required deposits, the Trustee shall as soon as practical (but in any event within five Business Days) notify such Participant and S&P of such failure.

Upon written instruction from any Authorized District Representative, to the extent that the Trustee holds moneys and/or securities in a Participant's Proceeds Subaccount, there shall be transferred to such Participant's Payment Account in the Note Participation Payment Fund, under the Trust Agreement, from the Proceeds Subaccount of such Participant on any Repayment Date, the amount stated in such instruction, but not more than an amount equal to the percentages of the principal of and interest due on such Participant's Note at maturity for the corresponding Repayment Date designated on the face of each such Participant's Note.

Investments

Any money held by the Trustee in the Note Participation Payment Fund and the Proceeds Fund under the Trust Agreement may, to the fullest extent practicable, be invested under one or more investment agreement(s) meeting the requirements of the Trust Agreement (the "Investment Agreements"); provided that, upon the request of any Participant, moneys held by the Trustee with respect to such Participant's

Proceeds Subaccount or Payment Account of such Participant, shall be invested, by the Trustee in any of the other Permitted Investments as described in and under the terms of the Trust Agreement. The amounts held in the several Payment Accounts and Proceeds Subaccounts will be accounted for separately by the Trustee. See "INVESTMENT OF PARTICIPANT FUNDS" herein.

The Trustee may act as principal or agent in the acquisition or disposition of any such deposit or investment and may at its sole discretion, for the purpose of any such deposit or investment, commingle any of the moneys held by it under the Trust Agreement. The Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any loss suffered in connection with any such deposit or investment made by it under the terms of and in accordance with the Trust Agreement. The Trustee may present for redemption or sell any such deposit or investment whenever it shall be necessary in order to provide money to meet any payment of the money so deposited or invested, and the Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any losses resulting from any such deposit or investment presented for redemption or sold. Any interest or profits on such deposits and investments received by the Trustee shall be credited to the fund or account from which such investment was made.

Moneys held by the Trustee in the Costs of Issuance Fund, Principal Fund and the Interest Fund shall be invested in Permitted Investments as directed by the County, as representative of the Participants, in writing. "Permitted Investments" include each of the following to the extent then permitted by law:

- (1) United States of America Treasury bills, notes, bonds or certificates of indebtedness, or obligations for which the full faith and credit of the United States of America are pledged for the payment of interest and principal;
- Any obligations which are then legal investments for moneys of the Participants under the laws of the State of California; *provided*, that if such investments are not fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, such investments shall be, or shall be issued by entities the debt securities of which are, rated in the highest short-term or one of the two highest long-term rating categories by Moody's Investors Service ("Moody's") and S&P, including any fund for which the Trustee, or any of its affiliates provides management, advisory, or sponsorship service;
- (3) Units of a money-market fund portfolio composed of obligations either issued by United States government sponsored enterprises or guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America rated in one of the two highest rating categories by Moody's and S&P; including any fund for which the Trustee or any of its affiliates provides management, advisory or sponsorship services;
- (4) An investment agreement, including a repurchase agreement, with a financial entity, or with a financial entity whose obligations are guaranteed or insured by a financial entity, whose senior debt or investment contracts or obligations under its investment contracts are rated in one of the two highest long-term rating categories by Moody's and S&P or whose commercial paper rating is in the highest rating category of each such rating agencies or is collateralized by investments listed in subsection (1) hereof as required by S&P and Moody's to be rated in one of the two highest rating categories;
 - (5) The San Diego County Investment Pool;
- (6) Any securities required or permitted to be used to collateralize an investment agreement, to the extent such securities are used to collateralize an investment agreement; or
- (7) Any other investment rated in one of the two highest rating categories by Moody's and S&P approved by the County.

Events of Default

If any default in the payment of principal of or interest on a Note or any other "Event of Default" defined in a Note Resolution shall occur and be continuing, or if any default shall be made by a Participant in the performance or observance of any other of the covenants, agreements or conditions on its part contained in the Trust Agreement and such default shall have continued for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof shall have been given to such Participant by the Trustee or the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount evidenced and represented by the Note Participations at the time Outstanding, then such default shall constitute an "Event of Default" under the Trust Agreement, and in each and every such case during the continuance of such Event of Default the Trustee or the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount evidenced and represented by the Note Participations at the time Outstanding shall be entitled, upon notice in writing to such Participant, to exercise the remedies provided to the owner of the Note then in default or under the Note Resolution pursuant to which it was issued; provided, that nothing contained in the Trust Agreement shall affect or impair the right of action of any Owner to institute suit directly against the respective Participant to enforce payment of the obligation evidenced and represented by such Owner's Note Participation.

The Owners of Note Participations, for purposes of the Trust Agreement and the Note Resolutions, to the extent of their interests, shall be treated as owners of the Notes and shall be entitled to all rights and security of the owners of Notes pursuant to each Note and Note Resolution and the Trust Agreement, and shall be treated for all purposes as owners of the Notes. The Trustee shall have the right: (a) by mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity to enforce its rights under the Trust Agreement against any Participant that is a party to the Trust Agreement or any trustee, member, officer or employee thereof, and to compel such Participant or any such trustee, member, officer or employee thereof to observe or perform its or their duties under applicable law and the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained in the Trust Agreement, or in the applicable Note and Note Resolution, required to be observed or performed by it or them; (b) by suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate the rights of the Trustee; or (c) by suit in equity upon the happening of any default under the Trust Agreement to require any Participant and any trustee, member, officer and employee thereof to account as the trustee of any express trust.

Application of Funds Upon Event of Default

All moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken upon the occurrence of an Event of Default pursuant to the Trust Agreement shall be deposited into the segregated Payment Account of the Note Participation Payment Fund relating to the defaulting Participant's Note and be applied by the Trustee after payment of its costs in accordance with the Trust Agreement in the following order; *provided* that the Trustee shall obtain and follow the instructions contained in an Opinion of Counsel and rebate or set aside for rebate from the specified funds held under the Trust Agreement any amount pursuant to such instructions required to be paid to the United States of America under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations issued or applicable thereunder:

First, Costs and Expenses: to the payment of the costs and expenses of the Trustee and then of the Owners in declaring such Event of Default, including reasonable compensation to its or their agents, attorneys and counsel;

Second, Interest: to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all payments of interest evidenced and represented by the Note Participations then due in the order of the due date of such payments, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any payment or payments coming due on the same date, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts due thereon, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference; and

Third, Principal: to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal evidenced and represented by any Note Participations which shall have become due, in the order of their due dates, with interest on the overdue principal and interest represented by the Note Participations at a rate equal to the Default Rate and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all the amounts due with respect to the Note Participations on any date, together with such interest, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of principal due on such date to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference.

INVESTMENT OF PARTICIPANT FUNDS

Pursuant to the Education Code, the Participants' operating funds are generally deposited into the County Treasury to the credit of the proper fund of the respective Participant. In the case of the Note Participations, the net proceeds attributable to such Participant will be initially credited to subaccounts of the Proceeds Fund, one of which shall be established for each Participant, and subsequently transferred to the County Treasury to the credit of the general fund of the respective Participant. See also "SUMMARY OF THE TRUST AGREEMENT – Investments" herein and APPENDIX A – "INFORMATION REGARDING THE PARTICIPANTS – San Diego County Investment Pool" attached hereto.

THE PARTICIPANTS

The Participants and the principal amount of the Notes issued by each such Participant are set forth below:

<u>Participants</u>	Principal Amounts*
San Diego Unified School District	\$50,000,000
San Dieguito Union High School District	15.000.000

LIMITATIONS ON REMEDIES

The source of repayment of the Note Participations is debt service payments on the Notes. A Participant is liable on its Note (even in the event that such Note becomes a Defaulted Note) only to the extent of its available revenues provided for or attributable to Fiscal Year 2025-26. If such available revenues are not sufficient to pay its Note or Defaulted Note, as the case may be, such Participant is not obligated to pay such Note or Defaulted Note from any other sources (including subsequent fiscal years' revenues). The obligation of a Participant to make payments on or in respect of its Note is a several and not a joint obligation and is strictly limited to such Participant's repayment obligation under its Note Resolution and its Note, and to its Pledged Revenues.

The rights of the Owners of the Note Participations are subject to certain limitations in the State, including a limitation on enforcement of judgments against funds needed to serve the public welfare and interest. Additionally, enforceability of the rights and remedies of the Owners of the Note Participations, and the obligations incurred by the Participants, respectively, may become subject to the federal bankruptcy code and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or similar laws relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditor's rights generally, now or hereafter in effect, equity principles which may limit the specific enforcement under State law of certain remedies, the exercise by the United States of America of the powers delegated to it by the Constitution, and the reasonable and necessary exercise, in certain exceptional situations, of the police powers inherent in the sovereignty of the State and its

^{*} Preliminary, subject to change.

governmental bodies in the interest of serving a significant and legitimate public purpose. Bankruptcy proceedings, or the exercise of powers by the federal or State government, if initiated, could subject the Owners of the Note Participations to judicial discretion and interpretation of their rights in bankruptcy or otherwise, and consequently may entail risks of delay, limitation, or modification of their rights.

On January 24, 1996, the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Central District of California held in the case of County of Orange v. Merrill Lynch that a State statute providing for a priority of distribution of property held in trust conflicted with, and was preempted by, federal bankruptcy law. In that case, the court addressed the priority of the disposition of moneys held in a county investment pool upon bankruptcy of the county, but was not required to directly address the State statute that provides for the lien in favor of holders of tax and revenue anticipation notes. The Participants are in possession of the taxes and other revenues that will be set aside and pledged to repay the Notes evidenced by the Note Participations and, following payment of these funds to the Trustee, these funds will be invested in the name of the Trustee for a period of time in the San Diego County Investment Pool or in an Investment Agreement. In the event of a petition for the adjustment of debts of any of the Participants under Chapter 9 of the federal bankruptcy code, a court might hold that the Owners of the Notes evidenced by the Note Participations do not have a valid and/or prior lien on the Pledged Revenues where such amounts are deposited in the San Diego County Investment Pool or in an Investment Agreement and may not provide the Owners of the Notes evidenced by the Note Participations with a priority interest in such amounts. In that circumstance, unless the Owners could "trace" the funds from the Repayment Fund that have been deposited in the San Diego County Investment Pool or in an Investment Agreement, the Owners would be unsecured (rather than secured) creditors of the Participants. There can be no assurance that the Owners could successfully so "trace" the Pledged Revenues.

TAX MATTERS

Opinion of Bond Counsel

In the opinion of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond Counsel to the Participants, under existing statutes and court decisions and assuming continuing compliance with certain tax covenants described herein, (i) interest on the Note Participations is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and (ii) interest on the Note Participations is not treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax under the Code, however, interest on the Note Participations, is included in the "adjusted financial statement income" of certain corporations that are subject to the alternative minimum tax under Section 55 of the Code. In rendering its opinion, Bond Counsel has relied on certain representations, certifications of fact, and statements of reasonable expectations made by the Participants in connection with the Note Participations, and Bond Counsel has assumed compliance by the Participants with certain ongoing covenants to comply with applicable requirements of the Code to assure the exclusion of interest on the Note Participations from gross income under Section 103 of the Code.

In addition, in the opinion of Bond Counsel to the Participants, under existing statutes, interest on the Note Participations is exempt from personal income taxes imposed by the State of California.

Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to any other federal, state or local tax consequences arising with respect to the Note Participations, or the ownership or disposition thereof, except as stated above. Bond Counsel renders its opinion under existing statutes and court decisions as of the issue date, and assumes no obligation to update, revise or supplement its opinion to reflect any action thereafter taken or not taken, any fact or circumstance that may thereafter come to its attention, any change in law or interpretation thereof that may thereafter occur, or for any other reason. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to the consequence of any of the events described in the preceding sentence or the likelihood of their

occurrence. In addition, Bond Counsel expresses no opinion on the effect of any action taken or not taken in reliance upon an opinion of other counsel regarding federal, state or local tax matters, including, without limitation, exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Note Participations.

Certain Ongoing Federal Tax Requirements and Covenants

The Code establishes certain ongoing requirements that must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Note Participations in order that interest on the Note Participations be and remain excluded from gross income under Section 103 of the Code. These requirements include, but are not limited to, requirements relating to use and expenditure of gross proceeds of the Note Participations, yield and other restrictions on investments of gross proceeds, and the arbitrage rebate requirement that certain excess earnings on gross proceeds be rebated to the federal government. Noncompliance with such requirements may cause interest on the Note Participations to become included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to their issue date, irrespective of the date on which such noncompliance occurs or is discovered. The Participants have covenanted to comply with certain applicable requirements of the Code to assure the exclusion of interest on the Note Participations from gross income under Section 103 of the Code.

Certain Collateral Federal Tax Consequences

The following is a brief discussion of certain collateral federal income tax matters with respect to the Note Participations. It does not purport to address all aspects of federal taxation that may be relevant to a particular owner of a Note Participation. Prospective investors, particularly those who may be subject to special rules, are advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding the federal tax consequences of owning and disposing of the Note Participations.

Prospective owners of the Note Participations should be aware that the ownership of such obligations may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to various categories of persons, such as corporations (including S corporations and foreign corporations), financial institutions, property and casualty and life insurance companies, individual recipients of Social Security and railroad retirement benefits, individuals otherwise eligible for the earned income tax credit, and taxpayers deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry obligations the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Interest on the Note Participations may be taken into account in determining the tax liability of foreign corporations subject to the branch profits tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code.

Original Issue Discount

"Original issue discount" (in this section, "OID") is the excess of the sum of all amounts payable at the stated maturity of a Note Participation (excluding certain "qualified stated interest" that is unconditionally payable at least annually at prescribed rates) over the issue price of that maturity. In general, the "issue price" of a maturity (a note with the same maturity date, interest rate, and credit terms) means the first price at which at least 10% of such maturity was sold to the public, i.e., a purchaser who is not, directly or indirectly, a signatory to a written contract to participate in the initial sale of the Note Participations. In general, the issue price for each maturity of the Note Participations is expected to be the initial public offering price set forth on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. Bond Counsel further is of the opinion that, for any Note Participations having OID (in this section, a "Discount Note Participation"), OID that has accrued and is properly allocable to the owners of the Discount Note Participations under Section 1288 of the Code is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes to the same extent as other interest on the Note Participations.

In general, under Section 1288 of the Code, OID on a Discount Bond accrues under a constant yield method, based on periodic compounding of interest over prescribed accrual periods using a compounding rate determined by reference to the yield on that Discount Bond. An owner's adjusted basis in a Discount Bond is increased by accrued OID for purposes of determining gain or loss on sale, exchange, or other disposition of such Bond. Accrued OID may be taken into account as an increase in the amount of tax-exempt income received or deemed to have been received for purposes of determining various other tax consequences of owning a Discount Bond even though there will not be a corresponding cash payment.

Owners of any Discount Note Participations should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the treatment of OID for federal income tax purposes, including various special rules relating thereto, and the state and local tax consequences of acquiring, holding, and disposing of Discount Note Participations.

Bond Premium

In general, if an owner acquires a Note Participation for a purchase price (excluding accrued interest) or otherwise at a tax basis that reflects a premium over the sum of all amounts on the Note Participation after the acquisition date (excluding certain "qualified stated interest" that is unconditionally payable at least annually at prescribed rates), that premium constitutes "bond premium" on that Note Participation (a "Premium Note"). In general, under Section 171 of the Code, an owner of a Premium Note must amortize the bond premium over the remaining term of the Premium Note, based on the owner's yield over the remaining term of the Premium Note determined based on constant yield principles (in certain cases involving a Premium Note callable prior to its stated maturity date, the amortization period and yield may be required to be determined on the basis of an earlier call date that results in the lowest yield on such bond). An owner of a Premium Note must amortize the bond premium by offsetting the qualified stated interest allocable to each interest accrual period under the owner's regular method of accounting against the bond premium allocable to that period. In the case of a tax-exempt Premium Note, if the bond premium allocable to an accrual period exceeds the qualified stated interest allocable to that accrual period, the excess is a nondeductible loss. Under certain circumstances, the owner of a Premium Note may realize a taxable gain upon disposition of the Premium Note even though it is sold or redeemed for an amount less than or equal to the owner's original acquisition cost. Owners of any Premium Note Participations should consult their own tax advisors regarding the treatment of bond premium for federal income tax purposes, including various special rules relating thereto, and state and local tax consequences, in connection with the acquisition, ownership, amortization of bond premium on, sale, exchange, or other disposition of Premium Note Participations.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Information reporting requirements apply to interest paid on tax-exempt obligations, including the Note Participations. In general, such requirements are satisfied if the interest recipient completes, and provides the payor with, a Form W-9, "Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification," or if the recipient is one of a limited class of exempt recipients. A recipient not otherwise exempt from information reporting who fails to satisfy the information reporting requirements will be subject to "backup withholding," which means that the payor is required to deduct and withhold a tax from the interest payment, calculated in the manner set forth in the Code. For the foregoing purpose, a "payor" generally refers to the person or entity from whom a recipient receives its payments of interest or who collects such payments on behalf of the recipient.

If an owner purchasing a Note Participation through a brokerage account has executed a Form W-9 in connection with the establishment of such account, as generally can be expected, no backup withholding should occur. In any event, backup withholding does not affect the excludability of the interest on the Note Participations from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Any amounts withheld

pursuant to backup withholding would be allowed as a refund or a credit against the owner's federal income tax once the required information is furnished to the Internal Revenue Service.

Miscellaneous

Tax legislation, administrative actions taken by tax authorities, or court decisions, whether at the federal or state level, may adversely affect the tax-exempt status of interest on the Note Participations under federal or state law or otherwise prevent beneficial owners of the Note Participations from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. In addition, such legislation or actions (whether currently proposed, proposed in the future, or enacted) and such decisions could affect the market price or marketability of the Note Participations.

Prospective purchasers of the Note Participations should consult their own tax advisors regarding the foregoing matters.

LITIGATION

There is no litigation now pending or to the knowledge of the respective Participants threatened (1) to restrain or enjoin the issuance or sale of the Notes or the execution and delivery of the Note Participations; (2) questioning or affecting the validity of the Notes or the Note Participations or the Note Resolutions; or (3) questioning or affecting the validity of any of the proceedings for the authorization, sale, execution or delivery of the Notes or the Note Participations.

RATING

S&P has rated the Note Participations "_____". The rating reflects only the views of the rating agency and any explanation of the significance of such rating and any ratings on any of the Participants' outstanding obligations may be obtained only from such rating agency as follows: S&P Global Ratings, Public Finance Department, 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041. There is no assurance that the rating will remain in effect for any given period of time or that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating agency, if, in its judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any downward revision or withdrawal of a rating may have an adverse effect on the trading value and the market price of the Note Participations. A securities rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time.

LEGAL MATTERS

Legal matters incident to the delivery of the Note Participations are subject to the approving opinion of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel. The proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is contained in APPENDIX D. As Bond Counsel, Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP undertakes no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of this Official Statement. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the County by Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Los Angeles, California, Disclosure Counsel to the County.

SALE OF THE NOTE PARTICIPATIONS

The Note Participations are scheduled to be sold at competitive bid on [Bid Date], as provided in the Notice Inviting Bids, dated [NIB Date] (the "Notice Inviting Bids"). The Notice Inviting Bids provides that the obligation to purchase the Note Participations is subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in

the Notice Inviting Bids, the approval of certain legal matters by Bond Counsel and certain other conditions. The Purchaser will represent to the County and the Participants that the Note Participations have been reoffered to the public at the prices or yields to be stated on the inside cover page hereof.

PUBLIC FINANCE CONSULTANT

Government Financial Services Joint Powers Authority, Sacramento, California, serves as the Public Finance Consultant to the Participants in connection with the execution and delivery of the Note Participations. The Public Finance Consultant to the Participants has not undertaken to make an independent verification or to assume responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in this Official Statement.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement and in compliance with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Rule"), each Participant has agreed to give, or cause to be given, through the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board's Electronic Municipal Market Access system ("EMMA"), notice of the occurrence of any of the following Listed Events with respect to its Note and the Note Participations not later than ten (10) business days after the occurrence of the event: (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-payment related defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; (4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions or the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determination of taxability or of a Notice of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB), other material notices or determinations by the Internal Revenue Service with respect to the tax status of its Note and the Note Participations, or other material events affecting the tax status of its Note and the Note Participations; (7) modifications to rights of Note Participation holders, if material; tender offers; (8) optional, unscheduled or contingent Note Participation calls; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Note Participation, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of such Participant; (13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving such Participant or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of such Participant, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; (14) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material; (15) incurrence of a Financial Obligation (as defined in the Rule) of such Participant, if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of such Participant, any of which affect Note Participation holders, if material; and (16) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of such Participant, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

The undertakings described above and set forth in the Trust Agreement may be amended and any provision of such undertakings may be waived, *provided* the following conditions are satisfied: (a) if the amendment or waiver relates to events described in the preceding paragraph, it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of any of the Participants or type of business conducted thereby; (b) the undertakings, as proposed to be amended or waived, would, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or counsel expert in federal securities laws addressed to the Participants and the Trustee, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering of the Note Participations, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; (c) the proposed amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Owners in the manner

provided in the Trust Agreement for amendments thereto with the consent of Owners, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of the nationally recognized bond counsel or counsel expert in federal securities laws addressed to the Participants and the Trustee, materially impair the interests of Owners or beneficial owners of the Note Participations; and (d) the applicable Participant shall have delivered copies of such opinions and amendment to EMMA.

The Participants' obligations under the Trust Agreement shall terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Notes and the Note Participations. The undertakings in the Trust Agreement relating to continuing disclosure shall inure solely to the benefit of the Participants, the Trustee, the Dissemination Agent, the Underwriters and the Owners and beneficial owners, from time to time of the Note Participations, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriters in complying with the Rule. The Participants have complied in all material respects in the last five years with each of their respective previous undertakings with regard to the Rule to provide annual reports or notices of material events, except as otherwise indicated in Appendix A attached hereto. See APPENDIX A – "STATISTICAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE PARTICIPANTS – Continuing Disclosure" attached hereto.

Copies of the Participants' Annual Reports and notices of material events and other matters are filed on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board's EMMA system. The information presented there is not incorporated by reference in this Official Statement and should not be relied upon in making an investment decision with respect to the Note Participations.

[Continuing disclosure compliance to come.]

MISCELLANEOUS

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the Participants and the purchasers or Owners of any of the Note Participations. This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to change. The Participants have not entered into any contractual arrangement to provide information on a continuing basis to investors or any other party. Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, are intended merely as opinions and not as representations of fact. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in affairs in the Participants since the date hereof. The delivery of this Official Statement has been duly authorized by the Participants.

APPENDIX A

INFORMATION REGARDING THE PARTICIPANTS

APPENDIX B

2025-26 CASH FLOW PROJECTIONS OF THE PARTICIPANTS

APPENDIX C

SCHEDULE OF PLEDGED REVENUE DEPOSITS

APPENDIX D

FORM OF BOND COUNSEL APPROVING OPINION

Upon delivery of the Note Participations, Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond Counsel to the County of San Diego, on behalf of various school districts, proposes to issue its approving opinion in substantially the following form:

Participants identified in the Trust Agreement

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as Bond Counsel to the County of San Diego (the "County"), on behalf of various school districts (the "Participants"), in connection with the execution and delivery of \$______ aggregate principal amount of the San Diego County School Districts Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note Program, Note Participations, Series 2025A (the "Note Participations"), evidencing and representing proportionate and undivided interests in (i) the tax and revenue anticipation notes (the "Notes") issued by the County on behalf of various school districts identified in the Trust Agreement (as hereinafter defined) and (ii) the debt service payments on the Notes to be made by the Participants. The Note Participations are issued pursuant to a Trust Agreement, dated as of [As of Date], among [UMB Bank n.a.] (the "Trustee"), the County and the Participants (the "Trust Agreement"). Each Note is issued pursuant to and by authority of a resolution of each respective Participant (collectively, the "Resolutions") under and by authority of Article 7.6, Chapter 4, Part 1, Division 2, Title 5 of the California Government Code, and designated the respective Participant's "2025-26 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note."

In our capacity as Bond Counsel, we have examined certain estimates, expectations and assumptions made by or on behalf of the Participants, originals, or copies identified to our satisfaction as being true copies, of such records and proceedings of the County and the Participants, certificates of officials of the Participants and others, including a certificate of each Participant relating to certain federal income tax matters (each a "District Certificate") and others, and such other documents, records and matters of law as we have deemed necessary for the purpose of rendering the opinions expressed below.

Certain agreements, requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Trust Agreement, the District Certificates and other relevant documents may be changed and certain actions may be taken or omitted under the circumstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents. No opinion is expressed herein as to any Note Participation or the interest thereon if any such change occurs or action is taken or omitted upon the advice or approval of counsel other than ourselves.

Based on and subject to the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof we are of the following opinions:

- 1. Each Note constitutes the valid and binding obligation of the respective Participant. The principal of and interest on each Note are payable from the Pledged Revenues (as that term is defined in the respective Resolution) of such Participant and, to the extent not so paid, are payable from any other moneys of such Participant lawfully available therefor.
- 2. The Resolutions have been duly adopted by the Participants and each constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the respective Participant.

- 3. The Trust Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by, and constitutes the valid and binding obligations of, the Participants.
- 4. The Note Participations, upon execution and delivery thereof by the Trustee, are entitled to the benefits of the Trust Agreement.
- 5. Under existing statutes and court decisions and assuming continuing compliance with certain tax covenants described herein, (a) interest on the Note Participations is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and (b) interest on the Note Participations is not treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax under the Code.

The Code establishes certain requirements that must be met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Note Participations in order that, for federal income tax purposes, interest on the Note Participations be not included in gross income pursuant to Section 103 of the Code. These requirements include, but are not limited to, requirements relating to the use and expenditure of Note Participation proceeds, restrictions on the investment of Note Participation proceeds prior to expenditure and the requirement that certain earnings be rebated to the federal government. Noncompliance with such requirements may cause interest on the Note Participations to become subject to Federal income taxation retroactive to their date of issuance, irrespective of the date on which such noncompliance occurs or is ascertained.

In rendering the opinion in this paragraph 5, we have relied upon and assumed (a) the material accuracy of the representations, statements of intention and reasonable expectation, and certifications of fact contained in the District Certificates with respect to matters affecting the status of interest paid on the Note Participations, and (b) compliance by the Participants with the procedures and covenants set forth in the respective District Certificates as to such tax matters.

6. Under existing statutes, interest on the Note Participations is exempt from State of California personal income taxes.

We express no opinion as to any other federal, state or local tax consequences arising with respect to the Note Participations or the ownership or disposition thereof, except as stated in paragraphs 5 and 6 above. We render this opinion under existing statutes and court decisions as of the date hereof, and assume no obligation to update, revise or supplement this opinion to reflect any action hereafter taken or not taken, any fact or circumstance that may hereafter come to our attention, any change in law or interpretation thereof that may hereafter occur, or for any other reason. We express no opinion as to the consequence of any of the events described in the preceding sentence or the likelihood of their occurrence. In addition, we express no opinion on the effect of any action taken or not taken in reliance upon an opinion of other counsel regarding federal, state or local tax matters, including, without limitation, exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Note Participations.

We undertake no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of any official statement or other offering materials relating to the Note Participations and express herein no opinion relating thereto.

This opinion is issued as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update, revise or supplement this opinion to reflect any action hereafter taken or not taken, or any facts or circumstances, or any changes in law or in interpretations thereof, that may hereafter arise or occur, or for any other reason.

The foregoing opinions are qualified to the extent that the enforceability of the Note Participations, the Resolutions and the District Certificates may be limited by bankruptcy, moratorium, insolvency or other laws affecting creditors' rights or remedies and are subject to general principles of equity (regardless of whether

such enforceability is considered in equity or at law), and to the limitations on legal remedies against governmental entities in the State of California (including, but not limited to, rights of indemnification).

Very truly yours,

APPENDIX E

PARTICIPANT NOTE AMOUNTS AND COVERAGE ANALYSIS